
Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

September 9, 2024 
 

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, September 9, 2024 to transact business.  Mr. Jordan called 

the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari 

Henning answered the roll call.  Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning 

Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Charlie Maklem, Jody Wilson, Scott Tarvin, Dylan 

Arnett, Yvonne Malott, Richard Malott, Pat Fisher, Tom Fisher, Jeff Morgan, Andy Chappell-Dick, Brian Bielfelt, and Ed 

Boll.  

 

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the August 26, 2024 regular meeting.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. 

Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the August 28, 2024 special meeting.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas. 

 

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation 

status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to 

actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.   

 

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the attached bills.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

 

Mr. Jordan introduced Resolution No. 2024-15, a Resolution Establishing Rules for Public Participation at Township 

Business Meetings and read portions of the Resolution.  Resolution No. 2024-15 includes an exhibit listing the Rules for 

Public Participation at Township Business Meetings.  Mr. Jordan read the Rules in its entirety.  Mr. Jordan motioned to adopt 

Resolution 2024-15 Resolution Establishing Rules for Public Participation at Township Business Meetings.  Mr. Bainum 

second.  All yeas. 

 

Cemetery and Maintenance Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He indicated that he called ODOT to put a work order in for street lights that were out at Half 

Acre and State Route 32.  In regard to new cemetery software, Mr. Tatman is working with two companies CIMS and Plot 

Box. He indicated they were working on getting pricing and would get back with him.  Both Companies said they can switch 

over to their systems.  Mr. Tatman informed the Trustees that the Village of Williamsburg borrowed the boom mower.  After 

it is returned, he indicated he would be back out in it to finish up along Township roads.  It was mentioned that the Ohio 

Township News magazine covering all townships in the state of Ohio listed Williamsburg Township as receiving the 

Chloride Reduction Grant.  Mr. Jordan said the Township had received over $1.5 million in grants over the last 18 months.  

 

Zoning Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report. The Zoning Commission met Thursday (September 5th) on the Alternative Energy Resolution.  

The document was sent to Assistant Prosecutor Julia Carney for review after that meeting.  Mr. Tatman worked all weekend 

finalizing the document and the one the Trustees have now is what will be sent to the Clermont County Planning 

Commission.  After the new zoning resolution is returned by the County it goes back to the Township Zoning Commission 

for a public hearing which is planned for around October 15th, 16th, or 17th.  Mr. Jordan said we stayed with the plan and the 

resolution is ready to go to Clermont County Planning.  Mr. Tatman said if he gets the material to them tomorrow it will be 

on the September 24th Agenda.  After that the public hearing would be around October 15 through the 17 th, recommendations 

would be made to the Trustees, and there would be a Trustee Meeting on or about October 23rd.  Mr. Tatman indicated he 

received an application for a zone change from B-2 to Industrial from the CIC (Clermont County Community Improvement 

Corporation) and already sent that down to the Clermont County Planning department.  That will be on the agenda for the 

September 24th meeting as well.  The Township Zoning Commission was notified of this and that the Zoning Commission 

Hearing will be sometime around October 15th - 17th.  There will be one Township Zoning Commission Hearing for alternate 

energy and one for the zone change.  Mr. Henning motioned to adopt Resolution No. 2024-16 a Resolution Initiating a Text 

Amendment to the Zoning Resolution of Williamsburg Township, Clermont County, Ohio to Provide Alternate Energy 

Zoning Regulations.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

  

Emergency Services Report 

Chief McCarthy provided a report.  There were 103 EMS calls and 41 fire calls for the month of August.  The 2019 Horton 

ambulance returned Friday and had a leak in the oxygen system, it has since been repaired.  Chief McCarthy wanted to 

publicly thank Stonelick Township for allowing us to use their reserve ambulance over the past months while ours was away.  

The Chief discussed two vehicles he wanted to put up for auction or bid.  He would like to sell the 2003 McCoy Miller, not 

usable by us, on gov deals auction site, with a minimum asking price of $10,000.  The intention was to convert this unit into a 

rehab but the vehicle layout is not conducive for that.  The Chief would also like to sell the 1974 Jeep due to it being 50 years 

old, rarely utilized, and not part of the future vision of the Department.  The Chief indicated the direction they are moving is 

toward a smaller ATV for wilderness rescues and fire suppression.  Mr. Henning said he was ok with disposing of the McCoy 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

September 9, 2024 
Miller.  He asked what year the other Jeep was.  The Chief indicated it was a 1977.  Mr. Henning said these are the only ones 

we have for field fires.   Chief McCarthy said we could use the Gator if had to.  He indicated it would be an estimated 

$35,000 for a new ATV vehicle.  Mr. Jordan asked about the transition time and if we had a new ATV.  The Chief said not 

yet and that there was a grant deadline of October 1 for $15,000 that would assist with the purchase.  Chief McCarthy said we 

rarely take both out.  Mr. Henning said he was not opposed to upgrading but was not in favor of getting rid of (a Jeep) until 

we have the new ATV.  Mr. Jordan agreed, indicating we want to make sure you have all the tools.  Chief McCarthy said we 

can wait (on recommended Jeep sale).  Mr. Henning said the Jeep will sell quickly.  Chief McCarthy recommended the 

purchase of 4 complete sets of turnout gear at a cost of $16,344.  The Chief provided an update on training.  The Ohio Fire 

Academy Close to Home Series brought training to us.  The academy brought their grain bin rescue simulator.  Over two 

days they provided training to over 40 firefighters from not only our department but Bethel Tate Fire Department, Stonelick 

Township Fire Department, Jackson Township Fire Rescue, and Miami Township Fire Department.  We also were able to 

train with an individual from Purina who has been hired as a mechanic and is part of their emergency response team.  

Breakfast and lunch were provided by the Clermont County Farm Bureau.  The 250 bushels of corn needed for the simulator 

were donated/borrowed from Cornwell Farms.  Mr. Jordan said he drove by and it was quite an event that was held.  He was 

told that it was one of the biggest trainings they had.  Mr. Jordan asked if there was any chance for training experience with 

the Purina bins.  The Chief said they want us in there now with no grain for confined space training.  Mr. Jordan said in the 

Township history a child was caught in a similar situation, went to Children’s Hospital, was saved, and is now a successful 

adult, indicating grain work can be dangerous.  Chief McCarthy recommended hiring Dakota Day Firefighter/EMT Basic and 

Sam Hill Firefighter/EMT Basic as part-time employees pending the results of their FBI BCI background checks.  Mr. 

Bainum motioned to hire Dakota Day Firefighter/EMT Basic and Sam Hill Firefighter/EMT Basic as part-time employees 

pending the results of their FBI BCI background checks.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan motioned to sell the 

2003 McCoy Miller on the gov deals auction site.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan motioned to purchase 4 

complete sets of turnout gear at a cost of $16,344.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan told the Chief we appreciate all 

you do, good job. 

 

Mr. Lefferson gave a brief background on LK Tech our information technology support provider and the migration from a 

hosted server environment to a cloud-based environment by year end as discussed in prior meetings.  Mr. Jordan had 

provided Mr. Lefferson with some grant information that could help cover this cost.  Mr. Bainum motioned to authorize 

Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson to prepare and submit an application to the Ohio Office of Budget and Management for the 

CyberOhio Local Government Grant Program, Cybersecurity Software and Services Grant up to $20,000 and to execute any 

required documents associated with such Grant for the purpose of assisting in the funding of cybersecurity software and 

services. Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas.  

 

In regard to solar, Mr. Jordan said we want jobs with benefits.  In interacting with the Ohio Power Siting Board what would 

best serve us.  Mr. Lefferson said he recommended not attending the September 10 th Ohio Power Siting Board hearing based 

partially on new information that the intervening parties involved in the hearing had reached a proposed agreement and that 

the hearing would be a formality and short.  Mr. Jordan said our best chance for push back on the project is the financial 

analysis. 

 

Public Participation 

Mr. Jordan recognized Yvonne Malott past Williamsburg Township Zoning Officer and Richard Malott past Fire Chief in 

attendance.  Mr. Bielfelt provided some comments on the Clear Mountain Energy Center project.  He said a misidentification 

of an endangered plant at the Clear Mountain site did cause a stir. He pointed this out in a letter he submitted to the Ohio 

Power Siting Board along with other issues and basic errors in the reports on the project.  Mr. Bielfelt indicated he added to 

the economic part of it by pointing out that this solar project takes away 13% of the Township’s available open space for 

development.  Mr. Chappell-Dick indicated he was consulting with the IBEW union and has Savion as a client.  He indicated 

he was not a Township resident.  He delivered a stack of papers to Chairman Jordan indicating they were letters from 

residents in support of Savion (Clear Mountain Energy), with a cover letter from Drew Pierson of Savion.  Mr. Jordan 

thanked him for the documents.  Mr. Jordan said he had 43 years in the UAW and could respect that (the union work).  He 

said we’ve been forthcoming and showed them (the unions) respect.  Looking at things so our youngsters have a bright 

future.  Mr. Jordan said the Eastgate boom has meaningful jobs and meaningful benefits, look at Mt. Orab, we want that here 

in the middle.  Mr. Morgan, Williamsburg Township, stated he was against the solar panels.  He indicated up through 

Hillsboro looks terrible, for miles solar panels, would not want to live around it, decreases property values.  Mr. Tarvin, 

Williamsburg Township, asked if Williamsburg will get the electric generated by the solar project.  Mr. Jordan said he asked 

Savion how much is here and it’s probably none.  Mr. Tarvin asked what does it do for us.  Mr. Jordan said some are against 

and some are for it and we are trying to give everyone respect and a chance to speak, it’s everyone’s right.  Mr. Bielfelt asked 

if Savion disclosed where the contract was to sell the electric.  Mr. Jordan said he did not know. Mr. Bielfelt suggested asking 

for any power purchase agreement.  Ms. Wilson, Williamsburg Township, stated she was against solar.  She was asking the 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

September 9, 2024 
Trustees to please listen to the citizens.  She said at the public hearing please listen to the citizens and have at times when 

people can attend.  She indicated you have a resolution from another township based off of what others had already 

experienced.  Mr. Henning said the hearing would be at 6:00 or 7:00 and probably at the Firehouse.  He said workshops were 

earlier in the day and being a workshop there is no public participation.  He said they did look at Tate, Jackson, Batavia, and 

other townships in the northern part of the state (solar resolutions).  Mr. Jordan said our group has done a really good job, 

took bits and pieces.  Mr. Tatman said when the Zoning Commission met, he thanked them and that at the workshops they 

worked well together.  He said we are ready to move forward, it may not be perfect, but it is what is best for the Township.  

Mr. Jordan said all Trustees were at the last Zoning Commission Meeting and that Mr. Tatman and the members did a good 

job, it was not easy.   

     

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:48 p.m.  Mr. Henning second.  All 

yeas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Fiscal Officer     Chairperson    


